
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Dearborn 

 

 
INVITATION TO BID (ITB) FOR 

POOL CONSTRUCTION AT THE FORD 
WOODS PARK 

 
CONTROL No.   122972 

ADDENDUM No. 5 
 

ISSUE DATE:   12/4/17 
 

DUE DATE:  12/13/17 AT 3:00 p.m. Local Time 
 

 
This addendum is being issued to answer questions submitted by the question deadline and 
to distribute a revised bid price form. 
  
 ANSWERS TO SUBMITTED QUESTIONS: 
 
1. Is there a projected date to commence construction? 
 The City intends to award the contract by the end of January. The project is to 

begin immediately following the notice to proceed. 
 
2. What is the open for operation target date? 
 The target date is mid-August.  It is the intent to have the facility open before the 

end of the summer 2018. 
 
3. Division 131100 1.3.A.1 Quality Assurance states that we refer to section 002113 for 

bonding requirements.  I cannot find this section.  Under the Invitation to Bid – Special 
Instructions, Terms and Conditions #2 and #3 state the bonding requirements for the 
Contractor.   Do you require a Performance Surety and Payment Surety from the pool 
subcontractor? 

 The City only requires payment and performance sureties from the general 
contractor. 

 
4. Division 131100 1.3.A.2 requires we be on a pre-approved list of Contractors.  How do we 

find out if we are on this list?  If required do we submit this to you for review and 
approval? 

 This verbiage was deleted as part of Addendum No. 2, dated November 16, 2017. 
 
5. To find out who the General Contractors are on this project would you be willing to issue a 

sign in sheet of attendees after the pre-bid meeting? 
 Yes, the sign-in sheet has been posted to the MITN site. 
 
6. The fence specifications are vague regarding post spacing. What is the typical or 

maximum spacing allowed? 
 Refer to sheet L1.0 for fence post spacing dimensions. 
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7. What is the construction budget for this project? 
 The City does not share this information. 
 
8. Can we be included in the Pre-approved list of contractors? 
 There is not a list of pre-approved contractors. 
 
9. Are wage requirements – Union, prevailing wage, or open? 
 There are no wage requirements on this project. 
 
10. Spec section 089000 Louvers and Vents call out Ruskin Manuf. model EME820DD for 

louvers in masonry. These louvers are a triangular shape and not available in that model 
number. We propose the use of model EME520DD (5" depth) in lieu of. 

 Yes, this is an acceptable substitution for louvers at masonry locations. 
 
11. Are there any soil borings for this project?   

A soil boring demolition/soil compaction inspection report is currently being 
completed by Intertek/PSI.  The City of Dearborn’s DPW Engineering Division will 
forward upon completion.  

 
12. Do you need a bid bond for this project? 
 A bid bond is not required. 
 
13. Where does the alternate price go on the bid form? 
 A revised bid price form is included with this addendum. 
 
14. The control gates do not appear to be powered.  Are they meant to be powered? 
 No, the control gates are not meant to be powered. 
 
15. Is it acceptable if the subcontractor forms are turned in post bid? 
 Yes, subcontractor forms will need to be submitted within 24 hours post-bid. 
 
16. Do you know the permit cost? 
 You may contact the Permit office or search the City’s website for any permit fees 

associated with this project. 
 
17. Is the project tax exempt? 
 The City is tax-exempt.  
 
18. 112 Break Room looks like it has countertops, however there are no elevations or details 

on it.  Please advise. 
 Refer to sheet A9.1 for cabinet sizes and mounting heights.  Refer to specification 

section 064023 “Interior Architectural Woodwork” for countertop material 
requirements and specification section 123204 “Prefabricated Casework” for 
casework requirements. 

 
19. Does the city of Dearborn have a list of preferred Pool Contractors? 
 The City does not have a list of preferred pool contractors. 
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20. Is there a geotechnical report for this project?   
 A geotechnical report was prepared by PSI on February 5, 2016 (PSI Project No. 

0381899) – See Attached. 
 
21. Regarding masonry units:  
  Unit Color 1 – is this Ground Face or Split Face? 
   CMU type 1 is to be Ground Face 
  Unit Color 2 – is this Ground Face or Split Face? 
   CMU type 2 is to be Split Face 
 
22. Finish Floor plan indicates pre-faced CMU, this is what type of unit? 
 Interior pre-faced CMU is to be Ground Face block, CMU type 1. 
 
23. In regards to the glazed block in the specs. Where does this apply, as the interior block 

seems to be painted? 
 Glazed block is not part of this project.  References to glazed block in the mortar 

portions of the specification may be omitted.  Interior faces of block walls are 
painted, unpainted ground face, or unpainted split face block.  Refer to sheet A10.1 
for areas designated to be painted block and unpainted block. 

 
24. Who designed the pool? 
 Counsilman-Hunsaker is the pool designer and consultant for this project. 
 
25. Floor Plan states SR Sheet Rubber on print A10.1. The specs list Altro Aquarius Safety 

Flooring. Is the material used throughout the project? 
 In reference to sheet A10.1, areas with floor finish of “SR” are to be sheet rubber 

flooring as specified in section 096516 “Resilient Sheet Flooring.” 
 
26. Are we to include irrigation? 
 No. 
 
27. Do all of the mulch beds require fabric per the specification (or just stone mulch which 

does not apply to this project)? 
 No fabric is required for bark mulch. 
 
28. I checked with the City, they said that plan review had not been done yet for 5700 

Greenfield. Has this plan review been submitted yet? Should we be figuring all the costs 
of plan review and engineering review in our bid? 

 The Contractor is responsible for all plan reviews and approvals. Contractors 
should include all fees in their bid submitted. 

 
29. Will all of the restoration be the Seed Mix specified in the Restoration Note on Sheet C1.4 

or do some of the areas get the School Seed Mix as specified in the Turf and Grasses 
Spec Section?  If there are going to be (2) different types of seed mixes on this project, 
please clarify limits of each seed.  

 Refer to the Turf and Grasses specification for all seeding. 
 
 
30. If only (1) type of seed is to be used, which seed type would you like us to bid? 
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 Refer to the Turf and Grasses specification for all seeding. 
 
31. Do we bid 3" of Imported Top Soil per the Restoration Note on Sheet C1.4 or do we bid 4" 

of Imported Top Soil per the Sheet L2.0 Landscape Note #1? 
 Refer to Landscape sheets for all restoration. 
32. Will the landscape beds be left at the correct sub-grade to receive 12" of Planting Mix & 3" 

of mulch or do we include excavation, haulage & disposal of the planting areas in or bid 
 The 12” of planting mix and 3” of mulch are a requirement of the project.  The 

means and methods of excavation / rough grading should be coordinated with the 
general contractor. 

 
33. What is the estimated schedule for the landscape portion of this project? 
 The City does not disclose estimated costs. 
 
34. On print A10.1 it states SR Sheet Rubber, but does not give the manufacturer or what 
style it is. 
 Refer to specification section 096516 “Resilient Sheet Flooring” for manufacturer 

and style of SR Sheet Rubber flooring. 
 
35. Who is responsible for material testing? (i.e. Density testing, concrete testing, concrete 

cylinder test, grout tests, sieve testing.) 
 The Contractor is responsible for all materials testing. 
 
36. Requesting specification for underwater pool lights, I’m not finding any info for them. 
 Refer to specification section 131100 “Swimming Pools”, Paragraph 2.21 

“Underwater Lights.” 
  
 
 
All other Terms & Conditions remain unchanged. 
 
Carrie Darkowski 
Buyer 
City of Dearborn 
cdarkowski@ci.dearborn.mi.us 
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REVISED BID PRICE FORM 
 

Failure to complete this form may result in your Bid being deemed 
Non-responsive and rejected without any further evaluation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LUMP SUM PRICE:   $________________ 
 
 

ALTERNATE PRICING: 
 

1. 76’ Poolside Waterslide, item #65-370 $      
 

2. Stainless steel lockers $      
 
 
 

 
Project is guaranteed to be completed within    calendar days after notice to 

proceed. 
 

You must submit your response as stated in the submission requirements. 

A tabulation of bids will be made available within 3 business days after the due date. Tabulations 

are posted on the MITN system. The lowest bid may not necessarily be the successful bid. 
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